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          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Good afternoon,

          3  and welcome to the afternoon hearing of the Civil

          4  Service and Labor Committee.

          5                 My name is Joe Addabbo, I chair the

          6  committee.

          7                 I want to thank you all for being

          8  here, for my colleagues for being here.  We will

          9  introduce them as them as they come along.

         10                 At this point, I want to thank the

         11  committee staff for putting this meeting together.

         12  To my right here is Tom Curry, Legal Counsel, Steve

         13  Adenesio (phonetic) my Legislative Aide, Joan

         14  Povolny the Policy Analyst, Daniel Turriago the

         15  Financial Analyst, and Letitia Theodore of

         16  Communications.

         17                 I also want to thank the Sergeant-

         18  At- Arms for restoring order, and keeping order in

         19  this chambers.

         20                 Back on May 4th, this Committee held

         21  a hearing on the One- In- Three Rule, and how

         22  certain agencies adhere or do not adhere to the One-

         23  In- Three- Rule, and when they do not adhere, what

         24  the issues might be, are they clerical issues, are

         25  they administrative issues, and so forth?
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          2                 It was a learning experience for the

          3  Committee, to hear testimony of different

          4  individuals who work for our City agencies about the

          5  hiring/promotion procedures.

          6                 As a result of that hearing that we

          7  had done on May 4th, this Committee and myself, we

          8  had drafted legislation that will ask the DCAS to

          9  form a report as they do their audit on city

         10  agencies, on their adherence or non- adherence to

         11  the One- In- Three- Rule.

         12                 DCAS will now do a yearly annual

         13  report on their findings and we will look at trends

         14  to see if agencies are adhering to the One- In-

         15  Three- Rule or not, and how they could be corrected.Again

         16  , it is a way that the Administration and the City

         17  Council could work together for the benefit of our

         18  work force throughout the City.

         19                 So, I am thankful that this Committee

         20  and its staff has worked very hard and diligently

         21  with the Administration, and members of DCAS, and I

         22  appreciate their time and effort, and thankfully so,

         23  we have a piece of legislation that we are all on

         24  the same page with.

         25                 We will hear about that legislation
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          2  today, and we are hopeful that the Mayor can sign

          3  this legislation soon.

          4                 At this point, I am going to call up

          5  our first panel.

          6                 It is Jennifer Blum, spokesperson for

          7  DCAS today, Jennifer, thank you very much for being

          8  here.

          9                 MS. BLUM:  I am not really a panel

         10  but thank you.

         11                 Good afternoon Chairman Addabbo.

         12                 I am Jennifer Blum, Director of

         13  Special Projects in the Office of DCAS Commissioner,

         14  Martha Hirst.

         15                 On behalf of Commissioner Hirst,

         16  thank you for this opportunity to discuss Intro.

         17  418A.

         18                 As my colleague Stephen Dobrowsky

         19  testified on May 4th, 2004 to this Committee, as the

         20  municipal civil service commission for the City of

         21  New York, DCAS is entrusted with the responsibility

         22  for the local administration of the New York State

         23  Civil Service Law.

         24                 The various bureaus within DCPS

         25  provide a wide range of human resource services to
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          2  City agencies.  Of particular relevance to Intro.

          3  418A are the following:  We develop, administer and

          4  rate competitive civil service examinations.

          5                 The Division of Citywide Personnel

          6  Services certifies lists of eligible applicants,

          7  establishes qualifications for positions and reviews

          8  appointments and promotion.  All of the functions I

          9  just described are done with strict adherence to the

         10  New York State Civil Service Law.

         11                 Intro. 418A will require DCAS'

         12  Division of Citywide Personnel Services to produce

         13  and transmit to the City Council an annual report

         14  regarding eligible lists by June 1st of each year

         15  for the prior calendar year.

         16                 We have worked closely with you,

         17  Chairman Addabbo, council staff, the Mayor's Office

         18  and the Law Department on the final language of this

         19  legislation, and pursuant to this legislation, if

         20  enacted, DCAS will product this report by June 1st,

         21  2005 for the 2004 calendar year.

         22                 I am happy to answer any question you

         23  may have.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you Ms.

         25  Blum, and at this point I just want to acknowledge
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          2  the colleagues that are with me today, and there

          3  will be some more coming in, and I will introduce

          4  them at that time.

          5                 But to my far left, Sara Gonzalez,

          6  and to my left here, Council Member Seabrook.

          7                 Thank you very much to my colleagues

          8  for being here today.

          9                 Just one question.  Can we just go

         10  over when we had first introduced the piece of

         11  legislation, Intro. 418, and now it is 418A, the

         12  amended version, can we just go over some of the

         13  amendments that were made to the piece of

         14  legislation that DCAS had requested, and that the

         15  Council had agreed to?  Can we just go over some of

         16  those minor changes?  Like I said, minor changes.

         17                 MS. BLUM:  I do not have the original

         18  version with me.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I know there

         20  were some definitions.  Based on your discussions

         21  and negotiations with the legal counsel, you may

         22  want just, again, just so my colleagues know what

         23  the changes were.

         24                 MS. BLUM:  Okay, all right.  Like I

         25  said, I do not remember what the original language
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          2  was but we concur that we will provide you with

          3  every eligible list established during the year.   One

          4  change was, you had asked for the dates of

          5  examinations that results in an eligible list, and

          6  we have all concurred that it makes more sense to

          7  give you the date the list was established, since

          8  that is when the actual clock starts.  So, that is

          9  one change.

         10                 We will give you the number of

         11  persons appointed or promoted, information about

         12  provisionals during the year, the number of persons

         13  considered and not selected three times from

         14  promotion lists.  I believe that was a change that

         15  originally said "eligible lists".

         16                 One piece of information that you had

         17  requested that was originally in the first draft of

         18  the legislation that we cannot provide, and is no

         19  longer in the amended version is the reason for

         20  restoration, that is not something that DCAS is

         21  privy to.  So, that has been taken out as well.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Another

         23  question.

         24                 MS. BLUM:  Sure.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Has it been
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          2  brought to DCAS' attention in the past about those

          3  who felt that they might not have been, at least let

          4  us put it this way, that certain said agencies may

          5  not have adhered to the One- In- Three- Rule, have

          6  you had any complaints about the procedures of

          7  hiring and promotions in the past, brought to your

          8  attention?

          9                 MS. BLUM:  Not in any meaningful way,

         10  I mean perhaps piecemeal, there have been letters

         11  written over the past but certainly not in any

         12  meaningful way, no.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Can you explain

         14  the reasons how a person can be removed from the

         15  eligible list?

         16                 How is a person who is on the

         17  eligible list, therefore to be promoted or hired,

         18  and then finding themselves off the list?

         19                 Can you explain how that person gets

         20  off the list or could get off the list?

         21                 MS. BLUM:  Sure, there is a range of

         22  different reasons.

         23                 In the case of a promotional list, if

         24  you are considered and not selected three times, you

         25  would be removed from that list.
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          2                 On an open competitive list, or an

          3  eligible list resulting from an open competitive

          4  examination, you could have declined an appointment.

          5

          6                 You could have failed to report.

          7                 The post office might not have been

          8  able to find you.

          9                 If you are appointed, you are removed

         10  from the list as well.

         11                 Yes, I was just reminded, on a

         12  promotional list, if you are not in the eligible

         13  title any longer, you would be removed from the

         14  list.

         15                 Those are the --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Right, the

         17  majority.

         18                 MS. BLUM:  Yes.  Also if you are dead

         19  they will remove you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Yes, that is

         21  unusual, I guess that is one way to be removed.

         22                 MS. BLUM:  We still let you vote but

         23  we take you off an eligible list.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Provisional

         25  workers, can you explain the title of what is a
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          2  provisional worker and then the average time

          3  normally, an average time, that a provisional worker

          4  is at a position, on the average?

          5                 MS. BLUM:  I do not know that there

          6  is an average time that a provisional serves.  We do

          7  provide the Council with a provisional charter

          8  report.  It is a quarterly report that has that

          9  information in it, and that is transmitted and has

         10  been for several years to the Speaker.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  And just for

         12  the record, briefly, if you can explain what a

         13  provisional worker is?

         14                 MS. BLUM:  A provisional has --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Not a problem,

         16  would you state your name for the record, please?

         17                 MR. PALUSACK:  My name is Mitchell

         18  Palusack (phonetic).  I am the Deputy General

         19  Counsel at DCAS.

         20                 Provisional is a type of appointment

         21  to a competitive class title.  There are four

         22  classes of titles, and provisional is a type of

         23  appointment to the competitive class.

         24                 It is a devise that allows agencies

         25  to appoint people to competitive titles during a
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          2  period when there is not an available eligible list.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  And for these

          4  titles, is there a separate list for each title, or

          5  is there just one basic list for the titles?

          6                 MR. PALUSACK:  There are two types of

          7  eligible lists.

          8                 Open competitive and promotional.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Yes.

         10                 MR. PALUSACK:  Open competitive lists

         11  are open to anybody in the world who is eligible to

         12  take the exam, and that list will be certified to

         13  any agency that has vacancies for that position.

         14                 Promotional lists are created, under

         15  the umbrella of one exam, they are created for each

         16  specific agency.

         17                 I do not know if that answered your

         18  question.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Two types of

         20  list;  open competitive and promotional, okay.

         21                 Any other questions from my

         22  colleagues?

         23                 I want to thank you again, I thank

         24  you for your time in negotiating 418A, and thank you

         25  for your time and testimony today.
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          2                 Thank you very much.

          3                 MS. BLUM:  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Let us call up

          5  our next panel. I have a panel of four.

          6                 Joseph, please excuse me if I do not

          7  get this right, Pietrafeso?  Pietrafeso, New York

          8  City Law Department, Abiodun Oluwa, Damaris Britto

          9  (phonetic), sorry, and Sheila Gorsky.

         10                 Gentlemen, I would suggest ladies go

         11  first, if you would just state your name for the

         12  record and then give your testimony, please.

         13                 Just also push the red button and

         14  make sure the microphone is on.

         15                 MS. BRITTO:  My name is Damaris

         16  Britto.

         17                 I work for the New York City Housing

         18  Authority. Right now I am a staff analyst too, and

         19  the reason why I am here is because we are on the

         20  associate's staff and on this list.

         21                 We are still on the list and and I am

         22  on the understanding that there is still

         23  provisionals in the title in the agency, and as it

         24  was stated, when there is a civil service list

         25  available, there should not be people in the title
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          2  provisionally.

          3                 MR. OLUWA:  My name is Abiodun Oluwa.

          4    I work for New York City Housing, and like my

          5  colleague Damaris, I am a staff analyst.

          6                 We took the promotional test they had

          7  put out for associate staff analysts, and we are

          8  still on this list, and in New York City Housing

          9  where you still have provisionals on the list, pure

         10  provisionals and in the department that we work, and

         11  we are on the list and we are not even being

         12  considered.

         13                 MR. PIETRAFESO:  My name is Joseph

         14  Pietrafeso, and I am with the New York City Law

         15  Department, and I am here for much the same reason

         16  as these two other individuals.

         17                 I was also on the list, interviewed

         18  for three positions but they were not exactly valid

         19  positions because they were occupied by provisionals

         20  that they never intended to fire, so in my opinion,

         21  how could you be considered and not selected if

         22  there was never a consideration?

         23                 Anyhow, so now our list is dead in

         24  our agency so because there are three of us people

         25  on the list, and they continue to hire provisionals.
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          2                 MS. GORSKY:  My name is Sheila

          3  Gorsky.

          4                 I am the Executive Director of the

          5  Organization of Staff Analysts, and I have been

          6  monitoring the Associate's Staff Analyst Exam for

          7  the past three years, since it was published, and we

          8  have been working with the agencies to make sure

          9  that they call the list and interview everyone, and

         10  give them the opportunity to apply for the jobs that

         11  are vacant.

         12                 We have run into many, many

         13  difficulties because when the original list was

         14  published, the agencies ran through the list very

         15  quickly, One- In- Three people that were not

         16  provisionals, and they appointed the provisionals

         17  and basically threw the other people off the list.

         18                 Now, in previous promotional exams,

         19  those people that had been One- In- Three'd before

         20  on other promotional lists, have usually been

         21  restored so that when other vacancies became

         22  available, the list would be used once again and

         23  these people would have another opportunity to

         24  interview for exams.  Well, in this particular

         25  promotional list, that did not occur.  The people
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          2  that were One- In- Three'd way back in October`01,

          3  especially in the Department of Transportation,

          4  there were 20 people out of 90 that were One- In-

          5  Three'd and they never got the opportunity to be

          6  restored to the list, even though we understood that

          7  you want to run through and do your provisionals

          8  because there is no cost action but those people

          9  were usually restored in previous exams.

         10                 We also have a problem with DDC

         11  because they are telling their people that if you

         12  find a good job as a provisional, we will appoint

         13  you.  Now basically, you are not supposed to do that

         14  because if a vacancy appears in an agency for an

         15  Associate Staff Analyst, it should go to the list,

         16  which would make it available for people to

         17  interview for those people on the list for the

         18  appointment.

         19                 We also have a problem with the Law

         20  Department, as discussed by Joseph.  They also

         21   "threw people off the list" and did not restore

         22  them to give them a future opportunity.

         23                 Now the Housing Authority did restore

         24  five people, however, they have not called that list

         25  in quite a time, and they do have provisionals and
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          2  we did speak to the Department of Administrative

          3  Services, and recently they did send the

          4  certification list to the Housing Authority, so it

          5  remains to be seen on how it will be used, or

          6  whether it will be used.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay.

          8                 MS. GORSKY:  So, one of them problems

          9  that we have, especially for this Associate Staff

         10  Analyst Exam, for the promotional, this is something

         11  new to us because in general, most of the agencies

         12  do cooperate and want to appoint their own people

         13  but for some reason, this last exam has caused a

         14  tremendous amount of difficulty and problems to all

         15  the candidates.  There are still about 85 people,

         16  candidates, still left out off the list, and the

         17  agencies will not restore them to give them the

         18  opportunity to apply for a test.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you, Ms.

         21  Gorsky.

         22                 You know, again, like the hearing on

         23  May 4th, when we had the first hearing, this kind of

         24  testimony is helpful, and that is basically, it is

         25  because of this kind of testimony that we created
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          2  this piece of legislation.

          3                 We were hoping to see, make sure that

          4  agencies do adhere to the One- In- Three Rule and do

          5  things properly.  Before this piece of legislation,

          6  we were unsure.  We did not know.  Most adherence

          7  was verbal at best.

          8                 So at this point, this piece of

          9  legislation, we are hoping will address your

         10  concerns.

         11                 I want to acknowledge the presence of

         12  my colleagues here on this committee, Allan Jennings

         13  and also my colleague Kendall Stewart.  Thank you,

         14  gentlemen.

         15                 Before we get to questions from my

         16  colleagues, Mr. Oluwa and Ms. Britto, how long have

         17  you been on the list, and also I guess Joseph as

         18  well, how long have you been on the list?

         19                 MR. OLUWA:  We have been on the list

         20  since 2001.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  2001.

         22                 MS. BRITTO:  Same time.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Same?  And

         24  Joseph?

         25                 MR. PIETRAFESO:  It is the same time.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Same, okay.

          3                 Again, we are hopeful that this kind

          4  of legislation will put something in writing, and we

          5  can track to see why certain people are not moving

          6  on this list, and actually as I said, see if there

          7  are certain agencies who are just not doing what is

          8  fair to the workers who exist on that list.

          9                 I thank you very much for your time

         10  and testimony today.

         11                 Thank you very much.

         12                 MR. PIETRAFESO:  Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Our next panel,

         14  Joshua Barnett, Robert Groghan, David Coard, Barbara

         15  Brown- Anderson, and Ed Price.

         16                 I want to thank the individuals here

         17  for being here today, and for giving their

         18  testimony.

         19                 If you would please just state your

         20  name, if you are representing an organization please

         21  state that organization, and then please give your

         22  testimony.

         23                 MR. BARNETT:  My name is Josh

         24  Barnett.  I am representing Local 375, DC 37,

         25  AFSCME.
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          2                 I was not exactly expecting to be

          3  part of a panel but it is nice to have company.

          4                 We discussed this bill at length in

          5  my Local, so I am speaking on behalf of the people,

          6  members and chairs that I spoke to.

          7                 My name is Joshua Barnett.  I have

          8  worked for the New York City Housing Authority for

          9  the last five years as Construction Project Manager,

         10  Level 2.

         11                 I have also previously worked for the

         12  Boston Housing Authority, where I helped unionize

         13  the architects, and the City of Boston Public

         14  Facilities Department.

         15                 I am a licensed architect in New York

         16  State, and I am the elected Chair of the Civil

         17  Service Committee for Local 375, Technical Guild, DC

         18  37, AFSCME, which includes approximately 6,400

         19  technical and professional city workers.

         20                 I am here on behalf of my Local to

         21  support Number 418.  With layoffs on the rise, with

         22  the increasing emphasis on privatization and

         23  outsourcing at all levels of government nationally,

         24  and with working people's living standards in

         25  general in retreat, strengthening the Civil Service
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          2  system like this is critical.

          3                 As someone who has worked for three

          4  public agencies, I know that civil service workers

          5  face two types of civil service abuses:  Abuses of

          6  the system, and abuses by the system.

          7                 Abuses of the system are the endless

          8  streams of violations of civil service law and the

          9  unit bargaining agreements and contracts that keep

         10  our grievance reps working full time. Things like

         11  workers forced to work out of title, unfairly

         12  demoted or transferred, unfairly disqualified from

         13  title lists, people kept in provisional status long

         14  after, sometimes years after, the legally

         15  established nine month limit, et cetera.

         16                 One example I would include here that

         17  we are dealing with now, is the associate project

         18  manager list, which has a open list of more than 300

         19  people but yet, there were 250 provisional sitting

         20  citywide in the City, and the list is not moving.

         21                 But then there are the abuses by the

         22  system, the legal loopholes and gaps in current

         23  civil service law that violate the intent of

         24  promoting workers with the opportunity to obtain

         25  civil service employment and promotions.
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          2                 As an example, it recently took

          3  almost 31 months after the exam for Mechanical

          4  Engineer was given for the City to establish the

          5  list.  What was so astonishing to myself and many of

          6  my Local's members was to discover that not only is

          7  there no set legal time limit within which the City

          8  is required to certify a list after an exam is

          9  given, legally the City never has to establish a

         10  list.

         11                 This is legal but it still

         12  constitutes an abuse.

         13                 I am dealing now with several cases

         14  in my Local for members who took the exam for

         15  Construction Project Manager, which is my title, in

         16  January 2004.  This time it "only" took seven months

         17  for the City to establish a list, but there are so

         18  many disqualifications that DCAS is having trouble

         19  handling all the appeals.

         20                 Again, the system of allowing working

         21  people to pay for an exam, study for the exam, take

         22  the exam, wait for the list to be issued and only

         23  then being told they are not qualified for the title

         24  is a legal abuse.

         25                 The logical process of pre-
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          2  qualifying people for an exam is inexplicably and

          3  inexcusably not part of this system.

          4                 My Local supports this legislation

          5  because it is intended to fix one of the abuses by

          6  the system.

          7                 One of the most frustrating aspects

          8  of dealing with the City civil service bureaucracy

          9  and DCAS, frankly, is the lack of a systematic

         10  process in how both large and small issues are dealt

         11  with.  It is hard to discern the process by which

         12  exams for certain titles are scheduled, and when.

         13                 Some titles have not had exams given

         14  for years, while some titles in my Local have two

         15  and three lists running concurrently and the State

         16  and Federal civil service systems, by the way, are

         17  requited to issue exams on a regular basis, so it is

         18  possible to do this.

         19                 On the personal level, with the

         20  vagaries of the One in- Three Rule people on lists

         21  can never be sure how fast the list is moving, when

         22  or if they will be called, if they have been passed

         23  over, or how many times they have been passed over.

         24                 Much of the responsibility for this

         25  does lies with the agencies and authorities, like
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          2  mine, who very often manipulate the system to

          3  maximize the number of workers with provisional, I

          4  will add, per diem, status.

          5                 But much of the responsibility lies

          6  with the lack of information gathered, reviewed and

          7  analyzed systematically by DCAS.

          8                 In the interest of collectivity, I

          9  will cut to the last point, and my last point is

         10  that this is no just an arcane issue of dealing with

         11  the obscure hiring practices for a few city workers.

         12    But legislation like this affects both the ability

         13  of thousands of people who run this city to achieve

         14  a level of job security and for the people of this

         15  city to have the most experienced workers continue

         16  to function and grow in positions of responsibility.

         17

         18                 Whatever level of job security and

         19  possibility for advancement civil service workers,

         20  like myself, possess did not fall from the sky, it

         21  was fought for, and remains one of the few avenues

         22  for possible steady employment available to working

         23  people, including many working people of color and

         24  immigrants.  It provides some level of job security

         25  that is deserved by all working people. It is one of
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          2  the glaring and inexcusable failings of our "free

          3  market" economic system we live under that one

          4  person can arbitrarily terminate another person's

          5  employment.

          6                 But for right now, those of us in the

          7  civil service system and the people of the city have

          8  the right to know that the City is obeying the civil

          9  service laws and regulations that they are supposed

         10  to, and this bill helps hold them accountable for

         11  that, and that is why we support it.

         12                 Thank you very much for your time.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Would you

         14  please state your name, and who you are

         15  representing?

         16                 MR. PRICE:  My name is Ed Price.  I

         17  am with the Department of Transportation for the

         18  last 28 years, all of which have been spent in the

         19  title of Staff Analyst.

         20                 I just came from a very nice ceremony

         21  over at DC 37 this morning, honoring everybody who

         22  had 15 years of service or more, and Iris Weinshall

         23  was there, and they were handing out plaques and it

         24  was all very pleasant.

         25                 But when it comes to civil service
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          2  lists, the Department of Transportation just does

          3  not seem to respect its employees.  It would just

          4  rather sit around and hand out plaques that mean

          5  nothing.

          6                 I passed the promotion exam three

          7  times in 28 years. Each time I am told that I have

          8  been considered, but not selected. The first two

          9  times I passed, they were actually having

         10  interviews. So, I went to interviews and despite

         11  good evaluations, I would never receive any

         12  appointment.

         13                 As I understand it if a person is

         14  appointed, they go onto a probationary period.  So

         15  if you do not particularly think the person if

         16  performing well, you have the option of not

         17  continuing them on.  I never get to that point.  I

         18  never get any opportunity.  The last time around, I

         19  passed the test in 2001 and this time I got a letter

         20  that I was considered but not selected, but they did

         21  not even invite my for an interview.  In fact, I

         22  cannot even get an interview for provisional

         23  appointments.

         24                 They always talk about the postings

         25  that they put up that anyone can apply to.  Well, I
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          2  applied to those provisional postings, but despite

          3  28 years of experience and good evaluations, I never

          4  even get an interview for a provisional appointment.

          5                 I do not know what is going on.

          6  Maybe I am on a black list or something for

          7  political activities.  I cannot account for this,

          8  and it continues on and on, and it is very damaging

          9  to my family.  I have college tuition to pay for my

         10  son, he is a college student, and life is expensive

         11  in this City.  And if you have no opportunities, it

         12  is just beyond believe.

         13                 That is just my personal experience.

         14  So, I just want to relate it to you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Well, thank you

         16  Mr. Price and it is again testimony like that that

         17  has created this Committee to start thinking about

         18  the One- In- Three Rule.  This legislation is is the

         19  first step.

         20                 We will again consider how we can

         21  better improve the procedure regarding the One- In-

         22  Three Rule, even subsequent to this piece of

         23  legislation.

         24                 At this point, I am just going

         25  interrupt this panel for one moment because I know
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          2  colleagues of mine have other items to take care of

          3  and other places to go.  So, we are going to do a

          4  vote on the legislation, and then we will still hear

          5  from those who want to give testimony

          6                 So at this point, I am going to ask

          7  that the roll be called.

          8                 Council Member Seabrook, if you could

          9  just step forward for two seconds.

         10                 I ask that they call the roll.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Addabbo.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Jennings.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  I would

         15  like to be excused to explain my vote.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Sure.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  I am going

         18  to vote yes today on this bill.

         19                 One of the reasons that, we have been

         20  working on this matter for about a year and a half

         21  with Bob Groghan for a long time, and I know this

         22  legislation is really not what we really intended

         23  for it to do.

         24                 When we started out about two years

         25  ago, our real goal is to make sure that what can
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          2  happen with the One- In- Three, that every time they

          3  eliminate somebody, they never come back to that

          4  place, and we want to have legislation in the future

          5  that we cannot eliminate the person off the list.

          6  That has been happening, like this gentlemen here,

          7  is that every time they call them up, they send them

          8  a letter, they do not interview them.  They send

          9  them a letter and say, "Well, we considered you, but

         10  we are not selecting you", with no interview.  And

         11  then, he is removed from the list, and they do this

         12  over and over again.

         13                 It has been going on since the Koch

         14  administration, and the purpose of it most of the

         15  time, is to get to who politically they want to put

         16  in place because if you have, you go through number

         17  one, you skip down to one, two, then three, okay,

         18  you eliminate the first one, and you keep going down

         19  and keep going down to who the Administration may

         20  want to get to.               So, we hope that this

         21  Administration, I think I introduced it last year,

         22  which for some reason went to another Committee,

         23  then we can get that back on the table, and pass

         24  legislation which has some real teeth, and make sure

         25  that is what is happening to the people testifying
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          2  here, does not happen to them any more.

          3                 So I with very strong support, I vote

          4  aye.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Seabrook.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  Aye.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Gonzalez.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  Aye.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK:  By a vote of four in

         10  the affirmative, zero in the negative, and no

         11  abstentions the item is adopted.

         12                 Council members please sign the

         13  Committee Report.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I want to thank

         16  my colleagues for their support as well.

         17                 And like I said, ladies and

         18  gentlemen, this is a first step for a complex issue

         19  regarding the One- In- Three Rule.

         20                 Mr. Price, I want to thank you very

         21  much for your testimony.

         22                 Next panel to give their testimony.

         23  Please state your name.

         24                 MS. BROWN- ANDERSON:  Good afternoon,

         25  Chairman Addabbo and all of your colleagues.
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          2                 My name is Barbara Brown- Anderson.

          3  I am currently working for the Department of Youth

          4  and Community Development.

          5                 I passed the associate's staff

          6  analyst test, and I was put on the promotional list

          7  as number nine.  I am the only individual remaining

          8  on the list in my agency who was not certified.

          9                 The agency claims that they only

         10  certify no cost actions.  I know this to be untrue.

         11  There were three names left on the list that needed

         12  cost actions, including my name.

         13                 I received only one call letter to

         14  report for an interview.  I went on the interview,

         15  and realized that the interview was only formality.

         16                 After which on September 24, 2003, I

         17  was called to Human Resources, and I was informed

         18  that I was being picked up off of the associate

         19  staff analyst list.  Months passed and I still had

         20  not been given my promotion.  I was told that the

         21  promotion was pending a document from the financial

         22  management union, revenue section.  The supervisor

         23  of that unit established the funding lines for

         24  promotion.  A funding line was established for my

         25  promotion and approved, but I did not get the
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          2  promotion.  I have attached that form.

          3                 My union wrote several letters to

          4  DYCD concerning the injustice that they were doing

          5  to their member, me, but they still refused my

          6  promotion.  This was not a merit increase, this was

          7  a Civil Service Promotional Exam.

          8                 In January, I was told that the

          9  Commissioner was not signing off on any actions

         10  until six months.  Many actions were granted during

         11  those six months, and they are bold enough to inform

         12  us when others are promoted through letter

         13  distribution.

         14                 I was told at that time, that I would

         15  be called back to Human Resources in six months, but

         16  it did not happen.  At that time, I felt very

         17  strongly to seek help otherwise, after which, I

         18  filed a claim with the New York City Commission on

         19  Human Rights at 40 Rector Street.

         20                 I have worked very, very hard during

         21  my tenure with the City of New York, especially with

         22  the Department of Youth and Community Development.

         23                 In their statement of rebuttal to the

         24  Commission of Human Rights, DYCD states that, I

         25  quote, "In reviewing the paperwork  involving
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          2  complainant's case and upon noting the salary, the

          3  large salary increase, the Commissioner determined

          4  that a salary increase of such significant

          5  proportion for the complainant was not warranted."

          6                 The Commissioner determined that

          7  complainant, which is me, would need to better

          8  demonstrate her work to the Agency to justify the

          9  extraordinary action of receiving an appointment

         10  from a restored civil service list.

         11                 As opposed to the above statement, my

         12  yearly evaluations have not reflected such.

         13                 I have attached a letter from my

         14  former supervisor of the Financial Management

         15  Department, which also states my self worth.  She

         16  hired me and I worked for her until she left the

         17  Department of Youth and Community Development.  That

         18  was Ms. Deborah Melitto (phonetic).

         19                 Although my working assignments are

         20  those of an Associate Staff Analyst, presently I

         21  still have not been promoted.           Also, my

         22  discrimination case is in the pending status with

         23  the New York City Commission on Human Rights.

         24                 Recently, a position of an

         25  Administrative Staff Analyst, office title`Senior
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          2  Budget Analyst', has been posted in my department,

          3  where I am currently working.  The position includes

          4  several of the responsibilities that I perform.

          5  This opportunity was never discussed with me or

          6  offered to me.

          7                 I will appreciate your attention to

          8  this matter, if it be at all possible.

          9                 The civil service process should be

         10  treated with honesty, and merit for every qualifying

         11  candidate.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you, Ms.

         14  Brown, thank you.

         15                 Mr. COARD:  Good afternoon Mr. Chair,

         16  and members of the City Council, and my colleagues

         17  here.

         18                 They have basically laid out the

         19  system as it exists today in New York City, and in

         20  the New York City Civil Service.

         21                 I would like to say to you Mr. Chair,

         22  and honorable members of the Council, the Three- to-

         23  One Rule is racist.  It is racist and it is

         24  derogatory.  Even though it is on the books in New

         25  York State, it should be struck down.
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          2                 It was a law that was first

          3  implemented in the early 20's, and as you can see,

          4  you have hard working men and women that serve the

          5  City of New York, like our policemen, like our fire

          6  fighters, who are trampled on every day.  They are

          7  not asking for handouts, they have paid their dues,

          8  they have taken the exams and in a society that is

          9  free.  And, in a society that promises liberty

         10  people have the right to work and earn merit

         11  promotions based on their qualifications.

         12                 As we can see, this has not happened

         13  in New York City.

         14                 I will not reiterate what my

         15  colleagues have already said because most of us

         16  sitting at the table here, it is a photocopy, I work

         17  for the agency of DHS in New York City, and I am off

         18  the list.  I have applied numerous times for

         19  positions that I have worked in.  I went to an Ivy

         20  League school.  I have a Masters in Urban

         21  Administration.  I have worked for many political

         22  candidates in City Hall, and I am told time and time

         23  again that I am not qualified, and I am incapable.

         24  Here is an individual that has written contracts for

         25  New York City, for the Department of Homeless
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          2  Service.

          3                 Here is an individual, ironically,

          4  who sits at this table after Thomas Freidan

          5  (phonetic) my nemesis, and I am not surprised they

          6  have problems in the Health Department but I am not

          7  going to comment on that, I am not here for that,

          8  sitting behind Thomas Freidan who, why they have

          9  problems, because people are not promoted based on

         10  their qualifications, or based on who you know and

         11  what you know.

         12                 There are numerous provisional

         13  employees in the City of New York.  My agency is

         14  hiring them day in and day out, and every time I

         15  apply for a position I am told that I am not

         16  qualified.

         17                 As an Associate Contract Specialist,

         18  I handled millions of dollars for my agency, before

         19  we were even an agency, when we were first separated

         20  from HRA.  When the positions came up for Program

         21  Administrator, I was passed over.  I did not sweat

         22  it, for 14 years I have sat and I have stewed.  I

         23  went and I took my Civil Service Exams, telling

         24  myself, that if I pass my exams and there is a City

         25  and there is a law and there is equity in the City
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          2  of New York, that I will be appointed, time in and

          3  time out, like my colleagues at the table.  Like our

          4  colleagues who cannot come here today, why?  Because

          5  they have to put food on the table.  I have been

          6  passed over.  I, too, have tremendous bills.  I,

          7  too, have a family to raise.  I, too, like the good

          8  life.  And I am not going to comment on Tom Freidan

          9  because had it been not for my determination and

         10  intrepid persistence, I too would have been homeless

         11  or in the street.

         12                 Like many of my colleagues here, they

         13  work very hard, and for a city to sit down and say

         14  that the Three- In- One- Rule is a law, I think that

         15  flies in the face of justice, it flies in the face

         16  of equity, and I want to compliment Chairman Addabbo

         17  and the City Council members, and my union

         18  colleagues here that are representing us for

         19  bringing this issue to the forefront.

         20                 It needs to be addressed, the Three-

         21  In- One- Rule needs to be struck down, and equity

         22  needs to be applied across the board in all city

         23  agencies.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you, Mr.
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          2  Coard, thank you for your testimony.

          3                 Mr. Groghan.

          4                 MR. GROGHAN:  Yes, Bob Groghan from

          5  the Organization of Staff Analysts.

          6                 I want to express the appreciation of

          7  the Organization of Staff Analysts to Chairperson

          8  Addabbo, Councilman Jennings, Councilman Stewart who

          9  gives us support here, to Councilman Seabrook and to

         10  folks who pass this.

         11                 Not only the Organization of Staff

         12  Analysts but, actually, all the Civil Service Unions

         13  have a very strong stake in this system working.

         14  And the truth is, the attention being paid by the

         15  Civil Service Committee to this particular issue is

         16  deeply gratifying to us, and in fact, we hope it

         17  will put on notice those agencies which we earlier

         18  described as the rouge agencies that they really

         19  have to stop abusing the rules as they have been

         20  doing.

         21                 Not just Local 375, but I am sure

         22  there are a great many other Local's in District

         23  Council 37, CWA's, and all the other places who feel

         24  the same way about this.

         25                 We recognize that the City Council
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          2  has it in their powers in this respect, we also

          3  recognize that the city agencies will, in fact, pay

          4  considerable attention when the City Council

          5  Committees put the spot light on what they are

          6  doing.

          7                 I am really glad that you are able to

          8  work with the New York City Department of Citywide

          9  Administrative's to work out a compromise here, and

         10  if it is only a first step, at least we are grateful

         11  that you are taking the first step, and moving in

         12  the right direction.

         13                 And again, thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you Mr.

         15  Groghan, I appreciate that.

         16                 I have questions for the panel but

         17  first I will go to my colleagues.

         18                 Anybody have questions for this

         19  panel?

         20                 Council Member Jennings.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  I want to

         22  thank all of you for coming.

         23                 I know you have been struggling for a

         24  long time with these issues, and I have been working

         25  with OSA since I came in office regarding,
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          2  particularly, this Three- In- On issue.

          3                 My question is to Mr. Groghan.

          4                 Are you satisfied with this bill that

          5  we passed today?

          6                 Does it go as far as you would like

          7  it to go?

          8                 MR. GROGHAN:  In this world I cannot

          9  always get everything that I want but, by God, am I

         10  glad when I get something that moves in the right

         11  direction, and I am glad that we are getting

         12  something moving in the right direction.

         13                 You are absolutely right, Allan, of

         14  course I would like more.  I would like absolute

         15  justice, and I am not sure I am going to get that

         16  any time really soon but a step in the right

         17  direction is a step in the right direction.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  Well, I

         19  think that I am very impatient for justice.  I am

         20  very impatient, I do not know about everybody else,

         21  but I am very impatient person.  Especially when it

         22  comes to justice.  Justice, I believe, should be

         23  immediate, all the time, and we are going to, I just

         24  want to give you my commitment that we are going to

         25  continue to work on this Three- In One.
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          2                 That as we all know, and there is a

          3  whole deal of experience, that when your name comes

          4  up on that Three- In- One, and they say well, they

          5  are going to eliminate you, they are not going to

          6  choose you, they are taking you off and put someone

          7  else, and we are going to fight to make sure we

          8  change that.  That no one's name is eliminated off

          9  the list.  That if they want to skip over you the

         10  first time, the second time, the third time, they

         11  are going to get you.

         12                 And this way, we can stop all these,

         13  how do we call, political shenanigans, where they

         14  continue to get to their friends in the agency, who

         15  they put in the agency, and as you know, and you can

         16  tell me if I am wrong, you have people coming in to

         17  provisional, they take the Civil Service Test and

         18  within six months they have the job as a permanent

         19  job.

         20                 Where you have people who are there,

         21  who have been in the agency for years and years, who

         22  are civil service, never get to have that job, is

         23  that correct?

         24                 MR. GROGHAN:  Certainly on the, I

         25  will get back to the Staff Analysts Exam, you would
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          2  be right.  If they even open the competitive issue,

          3  it would be true also.  Yes, it has a system that

          4  has been known to occur on more than one occasion.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  So again, I

          6  want to assure you that we are going to continue to

          7  work hard, and make sure that we get this

          8  legislation passed, hopefully before the end of this

          9  term.

         10                 All right, thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you,

         12  Council Member Jennings.

         13                 Council Member Stewart.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Thank you,

         15  Mr. Chair.

         16                 I have a couple of questions, and

         17  maybe you can educate me a little bit on this.

         18                 You said that you took the exam.

         19                 MR. COARD:  Yes, I did.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  And you

         21  passed the exam.

         22                 MR. COARD:  Yes, I did.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Now, that

         24  list that was created, the list is for four years,

         25  isn't it?
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          2                 MR. COARD:  That is correct.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Now, and are

          4  you saying that there were people who came after you

          5  that was promoted, and you still remain on that

          6  list?

          7                 MR. COARD:  That is correct, that is

          8  correct Council member.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  So, in other

         10  words, you are saying that the law has been broken.

         11                 MR. COARD:  The law has been broken

         12  and it is being violated on a daily basis.

         13                 We can go into any one of these

         14  agencies, people are walking off the street and they

         15  are being appointed as provisionals.

         16                 From what I understand, a provisional

         17  is supposed to serve in that title for 90 days.

         18  This is not the case in most of the city agencies,

         19  and here is the crux of our contention.

         20                 Here we have hard working people,

         21  that have paid that have paid their fees, that have

         22  studied hard, that raise their families, that have

         23  put their children in day care, that take these

         24  exams with the goal and the ambition that, "if I

         25  take an exam, I can be promoted, I can move up, I
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          2  can make more money for my family", and these

          3  people, on the whim of an individual, probably, I do

          4  not like the way you dress, probably I do not like

          5  the way you do your work, probably you are not part

          6  of the click, I stuck down and said, "look man, you

          7  do a good job, I write you excellent reviews", such

          8  as myself, "I have no complaints, but you do not

          9  suit this position, you are not qualified, I do not

         10  think you gel."               Now, my question to

         11  you and to everybody else in the City Council is,

         12  since when as professional do I have to gel with

         13  you?

         14                 If I am an engineer, I draw up plans,

         15  I give them to the general contractors, they allow

         16  the work.

         17                 If I am a chemist, I concoct the

         18  drugs, I send them to the laboratory, they make the

         19  medicine, we put it on the street. Since when do you

         20  have to like me to do my job?  That is why we are

         21  professionals.  You do not have to like me to do a

         22  job.  I do not have to like you to live in New York

         23  City.

         24                 But I am a New Yorker, we are all New

         25  Yorkers, and as New Yorkers we do what we have to do
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          2  to get along.  We do not have to like each other but

          3  we have to live together, and we have to work

          4  together, and so, when people make that effort, when

          5  they take that step, when they go to school at

          6  night, and they take these City exams, which are not

          7  cheap by the way, I think what was it, a hundred and

          8  change, forty bucks, whatever, it is a lot of money

          9  to pass an exam, to study for it, and then be told

         10  by an individual who does not like you for some

         11  idiosyncracy, "oh, you know, I do not think you will

         12  qualify, you know, we do not have that in the line

         13  budget, you are going to cost us too much money but

         14  we are doing the job".

         15                 MS. GORSKY:  It may sound strange but

         16  the person who is hiring you may very well never

         17  have passed the exam in the first place.  That

         18  person could be an administrative provisional for

         19  many years, and ASA provisional for many years.

         20                 He may have passed himself on the

         21  exam, and appointed himself but he is not going to

         22  appoint you.

         23                 So, the person who is actually

         24  interviewing you may not even be qualified to

         25  interview you.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  So, I am--.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Council Member

          4  Stewart, one second, I am so sorry.

          5                 Ms. Gorsky, I need to address this

          6  panel, so, for purpose of the record, the question

          7  is for this panel. Thanks for understanding.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  I am kind of

          9  baffled here because when this happens, the person

         10  who is making the appointment by sidetracking the

         11  rules, by sidetracking the rules that was

         12  established to have promotion and all of that, who

         13  is doing that?

         14                 You are saying that the supervisor

         15  makes the recommendation and then DCAS will then

         16  okay this, that is what you are saying?

         17                 Is this a systemic problem or just

         18  one individual? How is that allowed to happen?

         19                 MR. GROGHAN:  The One- In- Three Rule

         20  is legal, so, it might be right, it may be wrong but

         21  it is legal.

         22                 If they interview three candidates

         23  for a position, they have the right, the way the law

         24  was written in Albany a long time ago, to decide

         25  which of the three people involved is the most
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          2  appropriate for the job, which sounds really good in

          3  theory.

          4                 Now in practice, and not in all

          5  cases, in fact fairly rarely, but in practice what

          6  we have run into, especially in some agencies more

          7  than others, the interviews are either non existent

          8  or very dishonest, where they will compare you

          9  against three people that already have the job, and

         10  you have not got a chance of a snowball wherever in

         11  getting the job.

         12                 But because they in theory have

         13  considered you for three different jobs, they can

         14  take you off the list.  Now again, if they really

         15  had considered you for three jobs, and three other

         16  people were more qualified than you, and then they

         17  took you off the list and went further down the

         18  list, you could make an argument in favor of that.

         19                 Our problem came with the fact that

         20  after they got through doing that, they left

         21  everybody they took off the list, off the list and

         22  went off an began to find friends and relatives to

         23  appoint instead of people who had taken the test and

         24  passed the test, and had proven they were at least

         25  qualified to try out for the job.  They went off the
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          2  list entirely, and that is the part that does get us

          3  very angry.

          4                 That the One- in- Three itself is

          5  questionable, all right, I would not argue that but

          6  they went further.  They went ahead and abused the

          7  One- In- Three, and that is why we brought this

          8  matter to the attention of the City Council.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Yes, but I

         10  am still worried, why is it that they will take on

         11  someone who has not taken the test, which is a law

         12  that was created so that you can do the promotion,

         13  and that is due process that was set aside by the

         14  legislators to at least bring on people for the

         15  position, that will say "hey listen, you have to go

         16  to this, you have to prepare yourself, you must be

         17  qualified, and the way to determine the way that you

         18  are qualified is by taking this test."

         19                 Why would they sidetrack that rule to

         20  get someone who they, have not taken the test and

         21  based on someone's subjective opinion that going to

         22  be better than you, or can do the job better than

         23  you.

         24                 I do not understand why would that

         25  happen, and discriminate against those people who
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          2  have spent the time to study, to prepare, and take

          3  the exam.  Then, what is the use of taking the exam,

          4  if they are going to sidetrack the exam?

          5                 MR. GROGHAN:  Well, your comments

          6  naturally, get a response from our hearts because we

          7  would tend to agree with you 100 percent.

          8                 They are making use of loopholes,

          9  they have the right to consider, and not select, in

         10  three separate situations but then, in all truth, in

         11  every other agency just about, they get restored

         12  back to the list as they were going through this

         13  process, and get a chance at a further job when a

         14  further job comes up.              Only in a very

         15  small number of city agencies, do we run into the

         16  fact that consistently they made use of this

         17  loophole, and as to why they are doing it, what

         18  their motives are, I would have to leave that to the

         19  Councilman to figure because I do not wish to

         20  describe what I would think would be their motives.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  All right,

         22  do you think, I mean, apart from what the proposed

         23  legislation is all about, do you think that there is

         24  any other legislation that we can put together as to

         25  make sure that everything is in line, and that there
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          2  is no loophole's?

          3                 Is there any way we can come up with

          4  legislation to deal with this in the proper way, so

          5  that we do not find ourselves fighting in the same

          6  situation again?

          7                 MR. BARNETT:  Can I just back up for

          8  a second?

          9                 That I think that one motive that I

         10  will describe to them is because provisionals are

         11  much more vulnerable both to transfer, demotions,

         12  and being laid off then civil servants are.        One

         13  aspect of civil servants legally is you have a

         14  higher degree of job security.  And if you are

         15  provisional, if the Transit Authority now has 250

         16  sitting provisionally as Associate Project Manager,

         17  which they do, instead of having 250 civil servants

         18  sitting in that title, that means that they have

         19  that much more control over those employees, what

         20  they do and whether they even have a job.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  And even if

         22  people have taken the exam, and passed, and are

         23  qualified, they will not fill those positions with

         24  civil servants?

         25                 They will use provisionals?  That is
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          2  what you are saying?

          3                 MR. BARNETT:  In my Local, we have a

          4  history of lawsuits of having to sue various

          5  agencies to move the list.

          6                 One of the dilemmas though is that if

          7  do, for instance, sue the Transit Authority to move

          8  the list, now you have 250 provisionals who are

          9  still union members and working people, and no one

         10  wants to see them loose their jobs.

         11                 We inherited this kind of situation,

         12  but yes, if we do want to get people appointed

         13  permanently a lot of times it requires legal action.

         14                 MR. GROGHAN:  Councilman Stewart, my

         15  brother is speaking about the motives behind why

         16  this happens, and as I say, I would not argue with

         17  what he is saying.

         18                 But you asked the question, "what

         19  could be done, what would be the next logical step

         20  if this spotlight we are putting upon what is going

         21  on does not have the right results?"

         22                 Just change the one word.  Instead

         23  of`can restore', make it`will restore'.  That the

         24  Department of Citywide Administrative Services`will

         25  restore' individuals who have been considered not
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          2  selected from a list at the end of the list

          3  consideration process.

          4                 When they reach the end of the list,

          5  and there is no one left, everybody who was

          6  discarded gets put back on the list before they

          7  appoint one provisional anywhere.

          8                 So, just changing the word from`may'

          9  to`will' would make all the difference in the world.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  I just want

         11  to just mention that there is a bill--.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Allen, hold on

         13  one second let Mr. Groghan finish his point, and

         14  then we do have another panel.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  Can I just

         16  make one point?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Mr. Groghan,

         18  have you finished your point?

         19                 MR. GROGHAN:  Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Allen, make a

         21  brief point.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  I just want

         23  to mention to Council Member Stewart that, and let

         24  Mr. Groghan know, that there is legislation that is

         25  submitted in that does do exactly that. That you
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          2  will put the person back on the list, and hopefully

          3  it will be heard this year, and hopefully pass this

          4  year.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Two brief

          6  questions that I have for this panel before the last

          7  panel.

          8                 Mr. Coard, is it?

          9                 MR. COARD:  Coard.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you very

         11  much for being here today, and again, you bring up a

         12  point about the One- In- Three Rule.

         13                 If we were to either amend the One-

         14  In- Three Rule totally, or I guess, do away with it

         15  totally, what would be the alternative.

         16                 I am going to ask this first of Mr.

         17  Coard, and then we will go, if anyone else wants to

         18  chime in after but what would be to amend it totally

         19  or to ditch it and do something in the alternative?

         20                 MR. COARD:  I think that the Three-

         21  In- One Rule needs to be discarded.  Its time in

         22  history and its appropriateness has passed.

         23                 Many of the people that live in New

         24  York City are minorities, whether they are women or

         25  whether they are men.  They come to work for the
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          2  City of New York because they love the City of New

          3  York, and they want to serve the people of New York.

          4

          5                 But at the same time, they have to

          6  put bread on the table for their families.  They

          7  went to school, they have student loans they have to

          8  pay off, and they also want some form of

          9  professional growth.

         10                 Barbara has already stated, what

         11  would be the best way to deal with that?  Mr.

         12  Kendall asked that question.

         13                 My that was that, no

         14  provisional`shall' be appointed as long as there is

         15  somebody on the list because what we are saying is

         16  that this person has taken a Civil Service Exam, has

         17  been certified, and is a civil service or a civil

         18  servant they factor waiting to be appointed.

         19                 It is like being elected President

         20  and not be appointed to serve the country.

         21                 So my thing would be, that as long as

         22  there is a list, no provisional in any title shall

         23  be appointed until that list has been properly

         24  expired, and the people on that list have been

         25  appointed.
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          2                 In terms of the Three- In- One Rule,

          3  it should be abolished, and what would be the

          4  alternative?

          5                 It would make the playing field

          6  level, it would make the playing field even, and

          7  people would understand that when you come to work

          8  for the City of New York, you either`put up' or`shut

          9  up'.  You either produce for the people of the City

         10  of New York, or you get out.

         11                 Again, I do not want to harp on the

         12  Department of Health but these are the sort of

         13  problems that prop up when you do not have dedicated

         14  professionals, civil servants who know what they are

         15  doing.  A lot of things are done shoddily.  There is

         16  oversight. People are not accountable because I am

         17  not obligated to the City, I am obligated to Bob, I

         18  am obligated to Coard, he gave me my job, and as

         19  long as he is satisfied, I really do not care what

         20  you think.

         21                 But with the civil service list, when

         22  people are appointed as civil servants, there is

         23  accountability.  They are beholden to the City of

         24  New York like a city council member, like a police

         25  officer.  They are appointed to serve, and they give
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          2  that commitment, unlike the provisionals.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:   Thank you, Mr.

          4  Coard.

          5                 Does anybody else want to join in on

          6  that, again, the alternative to the One- In- Three

          7  Rule?

          8                 MR. BARNETT:  I would make two quick

          9  points. Whether I fully agree with what my union

         10  brother said.  The other thing is that two other

         11  things that I think is very much needed.

         12                 One, DCAS has to give exams on a much

         13  more regular basis than they do to give people the

         14  City provisionally entitles the chance to advance.

         15  I mean in my Local, my Local union bargaining

         16  agreement has 230 different titles.  Most of those

         17  are open to provisional in the upcoming year,

         18  exactly four are being covered by exams given by

         19  DCAS, clearly the majority of people sitting in

         20  titles have no opportunity for advancement.

         21                 And so, we have to give exams on a

         22  much more regular basis than they do.  Like I said,

         23  I agree with what he said about promotions, oh, the

         24  other thing is that I think broadbanding, which is

         25  something we did not really talk about, has been
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          2  tried and I think basically failed.

          3                 Promotion now is mostly at the

          4  discretion of management, where as there used to be

          5  regular steps for promoting, at least, within levels

          6  and sometimes from one title to another.

          7                 Now, like he said, it is whether your

          8  supervisor likes you, and not whether you move from

          9  one level to another, or one title to another, and

         10  that has to be put back to implement on a regular

         11  basis.

         12                 MR. PRICE:  Another thing that you

         13  might consider is to make promotional lists

         14  citywide.

         15                 There is no reason why people have to

         16  sit on a list for years when there is demand for

         17  that title in another agency, where they could

         18  easily be used, and that would also be a great

         19  improvement.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thanks Mr.

         21  Price.

         22                 Actually my question lastly is for

         23  Mr. Barnett, Joshua.

         24                 You had actually made the point in

         25  your testimony about time.  Time between the test
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          2  taking, and the lists that are established.

          3                 That was a very important issue for

          4  me to take up in the legislation that we just

          5  approved today in 418A.  We want to take a look at

          6  what is the lapse of time between a test that is

          7  given, and the list that is resulting from that

          8  list.  We see that there is, sometimes, large gaps

          9  and we are hoping to, obviously, shorten that gap.

         10                 Do you think that this piece of

         11  legislation would help in that?

         12                 MR. BARNETT:  In the draft that I

         13  had, which was 418 not 418A, it did not seem to

         14  address that specifically.

         15                 It seemed that it was more on

         16  gathering and dispensing information as to the

         17  status of lists, and people on the lists but, yes,

         18  if that could be included I would definitely set a

         19  cap on, I mean, A. If they give a test, they should

         20  be required to certify a list, and B. There should

         21  be a cap, I would not think more than six months max

         22  before they actually certify a list and give it.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I want to thank

         24  this panel very much.

         25                 It is because, like I said earlier,
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          2  testimony from this, that is what created 418 and we

          3  are hopeful that additional legislation can be

          4  drafted to, again, help address these issues.

          5                 Again, I thank you for your time and

          6  testimony today.

          7                 Thank you very much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Our last panel,

          9  if they are still here.

         10                 We have Abdul Wahid, Danita Evans,

         11  Marguerite Cronin, I am doing good, Alfreda Torbert,

         12  we are good.  Okay.

         13                 Again, I want to thank all for being

         14  here today. Into. 418, again, it is a result of the

         15  May 4th hearing that we had.  We are going to look,

         16  hopefully this report will look at the hiring and

         17  promotional procedures with the One- In- Three Rule,

         18  and see if there are any ways that we can improve

         19  this, obviously for the sake of the work force

         20  throughout this City, that we are most thankful for.

         21                 Thank you very much for your time and

         22  testimony today.

         23                 This meeting is adjourned.

         24                 (Meeting adjourned at 2:20 p.m.)
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